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The following shall be a part of RFP 3214.  If a vendor has already returned a proposal and any of the information provided below changes that proposal, please submit the changes along with this amendment.  You need not re-submit an entire proposal prior to the opening date and time.


1.	Section 3.4  What version of Esri ArcGIS for Server is NDF on?

NDF is currently utilizing ArcGIS 10.3.1 desktop software, and NDF generally adopts and deploys newer versions as they are made available by ESRI. NDF is not currently utilizing ArcGIS for Server software.

2.	Section 7.1.9  Does the 3 year fee schedule for licensing need to include Esri ArcGIS for Server 	software?

If it is determined by the contractor and NDF that ArcGIS for Server is a required component of the system-yes licensing costs should be included in the 3-year fee schedule.

3.	Section 5.8 Will NDF host the ArcGIS for Server and maintain GIS data (datasets, MXD's, etc) 	in-house, or will the hosting site need to support ArcGIS for Server?

The hosting site will need to support ArcGIS for Server. 

4.	Section 4.3  Are all non-operational layers in raster format, or is there a mix of vector and raster 	data?

There will be a mixture of vector and raster layers.

5.	Section 4.3  Does NDF desire map coordinates display that updates realtime with mouse 	pointer movement, or coordinates given at a clicked point on map?

NDF desires map coordinates to be given at a clicked point on the map. Section 4.3.1.11 describes a process whereby the user enters a coordinate and that location is shown and a function is available that allows the user to zoom the map to that location.

6.	Section 5.7 Are there existing example sites that NDF would like to emulate for the fire 	operations upload interface and/or incident display?

1)  http://www.intterragroup.com/situationanalyst
2) http://www.firewhat.com/products 

7.	Pg 29, Section 5.7.1
	The RFP states that “The fire operations side of the application shall include the ability for real-	time incident data uploads from multiple (500 minimum) cooperators simultaneously”. 
	
	What is the source of the incident data?  Does a web service or database currently exist (at NDF 	or hosted elsewhere) that the contractor should consume or is it expected that the contractor 	develop the functionality to allow cooperators to upload their incident data or harvest from the 	data from existing databases?

NDF does not currently have a database or a web service that could be used to enable this portion of the RFP. NDF’s vision is that there will be many sources of data feeding centrally located databases. National databases such as IRWIN and EGP should be consumed and will provide national incident status, location, and other pertinent information on incidents and preparedness levels etc. The contractor is also expected to develop and provide a database capable of handling data produced, in the field, by emergency responders using electronic devices and make that same data available to all other responders through login access to the cloud based application.

8.	Page 13, Section 4.2.1
	"The web applications shall be developed using the latest ESRI ArcGIS Server for Flex API, or 	comparable as approved by NDF"

	Question: Esri and the industry is moving away from the use of Flex as it has many limitations 	especially for mobile viewing.  We would like to confirm that the use of other modern 	technologies will be appropriate including JavaScript and HTML5 as this will be important in 	the estimation and features available in the portal.  AZWRAP and UTWRAP are built using 	these newer technologies for reference to ensure mobile compliance.

Yes, the use of alternative/comparable modern technologies will be appropriate and acceptable, approved by NDF as stated in 4.2.1. 

9.	Page 29, Section 5.6.1
	"This task will enhance the functionality and output performance and capability of the web 	portal by incorporating additional datasets including, at a minimum, SMART database 	management plans, CWPP datasets, forest health, sage grouse habitat layers, updated fire 	history layers."

	Question:  We are familiar with the SMART data but would like to confirm the availability and 	format of the other data sets mentioned.  Are CWPP data available including CWPP area and 	the CWPP documents themselves?

Yes, datasets that are specified in the RFP and others that NDF would also want to include would be provided by NDF to the awarded contractor. NDF would assume responsibility for creating non-existing datasets, cleaning the existing data, and assisting the contractor in dataset formatting that ensures the best performance. Some consultation and coordination between NDF and awarded contractor during the data cleaning, dataset creation, and data formatting should be expected to ensure acceptable results. CWPP areas and documents would be provided to the awarded contractor by NDF.

10.	Is ArcGIS API for JavaScript a supported platform for development of this application? It looks 	like ESRI will aggressively encourage the use of the ArcGIS API for JavaScript to build 	custom and out of the box web applications. New ArcGIS platform capabilities will be 	available only in JavaScript API and will not be available to the Flex APIs.

Yes, the use of alternative/comparable modern technologies rather than Flex APIs will be appropriate and acceptable, as approved by NDF, as stated in 4.2.1.

11.	Is the fire and natural resource data in GIS format?

	Yes.

12.	Is there a preference for storing the GIS data for website either in File Geodatabase or Personal 	Geodatabase or SQL Server database?

The contractor is expected to use the most appropriate technological solutions that allow for maximized function in terms of simultaneous data inputs, edits, and downloads, rapid database expansion, limitless data volumes, high volume database consumption, etc.

13.	In RFP Sections 4.5.10.1 and 7.1.2-7.1.5, NDF specifies that “Separate development, test and 	production environments must be established on State systems.” Would NDF be receptive to a 	solution in which all environments are cloud-based?

	Yes.

14.	In RFP Section 5.3.3 “Deliverables”, Deliverable 5.3.3.1 reads “All required datasets updated.” 

	a.	How many datasets are required to be updated?

		See 14.b. below

	b.	What data are we updating?

This is addressed in section 5.5.1 in the RFP, not section 5.3.3 as stated in the question. The primary dataset that will be used for this deliverable, as stated in section 5.5.1 Objective, is the West Wide Wildfire Risk Assessment for Nevada, and additional datasets as required. If NDF and the contractor identify additional datasets necessary for inclusion, datasets would be provided by NDF to the awarded contractor. NDF would assume responsibility for creating non-existing datasets, cleaning the existing data, and assisting the contractor in dataset formatting that ensures the best performance. Some consultation and coordination between NDF and awarded contractor during the data cleaning, dataset creation, and data formatting should be expected to ensure acceptable results. CWPP areas and documents would be provided to the awarded contractor by NDF.

	c.	How do we access the information?

		NDF will provide it to the awarded contractor.

	d.	Where does the data live (i.e. in-house)?

		NDF – in-house.

	e.	What are the data formats?

		Both raster and vector GIS data formats.

	f.	Is any of the data considered sensitive?

There may be one or two layers that are sensitive and NDF would clearly communicate any restrictions associated with sensitive datasets to the contractor to avoid violations of privacy etc.

	g.	Will NDF provide a sample set of this data?

		Yes, NDF can provide sample sets of the data to the awarded vendor.

15.	In RFP Section 5.6.3 “Deliverables”, Deliverable 5.6.3.1 reads “Enhanced functionality and 	output application performance on additional datasets.”

	a.	How many datasets are included with the SMART database management plans, CWPP 		datasets, forest health, sage grouse habitat layers, and updated fire history layers?

		NDF would seek to add approximately 25 layers.

	b.	How do we access the information?

NDF currently stores these layers on an internal server and will provide to the awarded contactor.

	c.	Where does the data live (i.e. in-house)?

		NDF – in-house.

	d.	What are the data formats?

The data is a variety of ArcGIS compatible raster and vector datasets.

	e.	Is any of the data considered sensitive?

There may be one or two layers that are sensitive and NDF would clearly communicate any restrictions associated with sensitive datasets to the awarded contractor to avoid violations of privacy etc.
	f.	Will NDF provide a sample set of this data?

		Yes, NDF can provide sample sets of the data to the awarded vendor.

16.	In RFP Section 5.7.3 “Deliverables”, Deliverable 5.7.3.1 reads “Fire operations portal 	component allowing for real-time incident data uploads.” Does the real-time data currently 	exist, and if so, where does it live and what format is it?

The real time data does not currently exist. NDF’s vision is for the contractor to develop the appropriate and functional database that is coupled with a geospatial application that could mesh up existing datasets (e.g. IRWIN, EGP, etc.) with geospatial and tabular data that is created by first responders using electronic devices in the field that are linked to the database. All of this data would be refreshed frequently (0 to 5 minutes) so that other first responders and commanding personnel could observe incident development on any electronic device with a valid login.

17.	RFP Section 4.2.1 reads “The web applications shall be developed using the latest ESRI 	ArcGIS for Server for Flex API, or comparable as approved by NDF.” What other API’s are 	approved by NDF?

None currently for this project, however the use of alternative/comparable modern technologies rather than Flex APIs will be appropriate and acceptable, as approved by NDF, as stated in 4.2.1.in the RFP.

18.	Functional Requirement 4.4.3.1 reads “Manage Project Areas tool for defining an area of 	interest. Users many create a project area by…etc.” Regarding “Using an existing 	organizational boundary,” where does this data come and what is the format of the data?

Other organizational boundaries (e.g. zip codes, congressional districts, counties, watersheds, etc.) include vector data publically available from a variety of sources that could be retrieved by NDF or the contractor. These datasets are generally available in an ArcGIS compatible vector format.

19.	Functional Requirement 4.4.3.2 read “Generate a detailed risk summary report for the user 	defined area of interest. This report will be created in Microsoft Word DOCX format. …etc.” 	Would NDF be receptive to generate the report in Adobe PDF rather than a Microsoft Word 	DOCX formatted document?

No, NDF is not open to providing a .pdf output option in lieu of the .docx ouput format. However NDF is open to the contractor providing additional output format options to the required .docx format, which may include .pdf or others. 

20.	RFP Sections 11.2.3.6, 11.2.3.7, and 11.2.3.8 specify that “Vendors must place their written 	response(s) in bold/italics immediately following the applicable RFP question, statement and/or 	section.” Is it NDF’s expectation that bidder will reproduce the RFP text from RFP sections 4, 	5, and 6 verbatim in their technical proposal and insert an explanation below each requirement?

	Please see Section 11.1.5.  As stated this requirement is for the purpose of ease of evaluation and must be placed immediately following the applicable RFP question, statement and/or section.  Exceptions/assumptions to this may be considered during the evaluation process.


ALL ELSE REMAINS THE SAME FOR RFP 3214.


Vendor must sign and return this amendment with proposal submitted.

	Vendor Name:
	

	Authorized Signature:
	

	Title:
	
	Date:
	






	This document must be submitted in the “State Documents” section/tab of vendors’ technical proposal.
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